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AGIA IN MODERN TIMES

The area of Agia is  part of Thessaly with a long and interesting history.
Due to its geomorphology, ever since ancient times the area between Olympus and Pelion, with dense forests and abundant water, has been  associated with the birth of several myths and traditions. 
The ancient Greek myths of the Deluge of Deucalion, the terrible struggle of giants vs. the Olympians, the Nymphs of Penaeus (Penaeus was the father of the Nymphs, the water springs of  Thessaly), the cult of Demeter in the  forests of  Dotion Campus ( the  Dryads), Hercules (he died in Thessaly), and Philoctetes ( the hero of the Trojan war) are some of those connected with  our region.
On the historical development of the region in the period of antiquity  our knowledge is still limited though there is an increasing amount of information concerning the Byzantine era, when the area acquired great significance. 
Firstly, because it was a crossing point between Macedonia and Thessaly and secondly, because, ever since the 9th  century it became a place of intense religious activity of the monastic community of the "Mount of Cells" that was firstly established on eastern Kissavos and later throughout the Agia region. This is testified by the large number of hermitages and monasteries in the area (such as the Hermitage of St Anargyroi, a part of St George, St Nikolaos and St Damianos in Anatoli etc.).

The economic growth of that period was followed by centuries of unrest including the conquest of Thessaly by Francs, the Catalan raids, the settlement of slav tribes and, ultimately, the final conquest of the region by the Ottomans (Osmanli)   in 1393-1396. 
As a result, the population and economy of the region shrank.
The town of Agia was built during the early years of the Ottoman rule. Ever since the middle of the 16th century, it secured a favourable status, since Suleiman the Magnificent bestowed the region to his daughter who turned it into vakfs, that is, donated   tax revenues to charitable institutions in Constantinople. This privileged tax arrangement boosted demographic and economic growth, mainly from the mid 18th century. 
The fertile soil and rich production of cotton and silk led to the development of cooperatives of weaving yarns and the trading of red cotton-yarn.

This occurred mainly after the dismantling of the cooperative in Ampelakia when the Agia merchants   expanded their activities to European countries.
 These activities however were disrupted because of the napoleonic wars in the beginning of the 19th century and  the competition of the English industry. As a result, its inhabitants turned to sericulture, viticulture, tanning and soapmaking.
Despite all this, for twenty years (1855-1875) the area experienced a new   growth of the silk trade. 
The economic prosperity of this period is reflected on the overall function of the Agia community. 
Wealthy families, such as Alexoulis, Dallas, Heracleidis, as well as families of neighbouring  Metaxohori such as Efthymios Vatzias who having taken control of the silk trade acquired great wealth and commissioned the building of beautiful mansions. 
Additionally, with their participation in the communal affairs, they started to care for the spiritual/cultural upgrade of their homeland. Thus in the field of letters , Agia did not fall behind the rest of Thessaly in progress.
 There was a Mutual Teaching School (Allilodidaskalio), a Greek School and   schools for girls in Agia and Metaxohori. 
At the same time, the development of the area attracted residents of other regions who moved in to establish their carreers in the area. Among them were doctors such as D. Alamanos and D. Samsarelos as well as foreign entrepreneurs such as Eugene and Stefanie Favre who settled in Metaxohori in 1872 and dealt with trade.
After the liberation of Thessaly  in 1881 with the Berlin Treaty and the annexation of the Greek State (1881) the area changed character. The economic activity of the inhabitants concentrated on sericulture combined with the silkworm production. In fact, the Tzimeros family in Metaxohori made high quality silkworm exports to Persia. 

The wealth offered by the forests of kissavos and Mavrovouni turned a large number of the inhabitants to logging and trading of forest products in a more systematic way. 
Although the area  was deprived of a large forest area of 35,000 acres of the  Polidentri forest, which had been  an Ottoman rule manor but in 1906 was transfered to  the royal family,  the exploitation of forests emerged as an important aspect of the local economy. 
The first logging cooperatives were set up in several communities, such as Megalovryso, Sklithro and Elafos.
It should be stressed that the development of logging in the first decades of the 20th century was one of the reasons that restrained  migration into cities  and urbanization. 
A secondary  School of Forestry  was founded in Agia in 1915 to produce staff that would undertake  the protection and exploitation of woodland areas. The school was intermittently operational  until 1979. 
During the German Occupation, Agia   came under the control of the Italian occupation forces with harsh reprisals against residents. The resistance movement developed in the mountains of Kissavos and Mavrovouni under the leadership of  ELAS (Greek Popular Liberation Army). After the capitulation of Italy in 1943 (Armistice of Cassibile), the resistance movement acquired control of the entire region.
 However, the civil war that followed and   economic depression  led many locals to seek safety in large cities.
Sericulture was abandoned as massive imports of synthetic fibers made silk cultivation unprofitable; it was gradually replaced by more lucrative crops such as apples, cherries, that are still being  grown today. 
Ιn recent decades the development of tourism in the region has upgraded the standard and cultural level of the people and turned the region into  one of the most dynamic ones  of Greece.

Memories of all    this historical route mentioned are still preserved in stone mansions, houses, churches, bridges, fountains and paths - which retain the characteristics of local architecture based on traditional local materials,-stone, wood, clay - materials so generously offered by nature.
A   lot of notable figures emerged within that particular period.
 Military leaders    in the   1878 revolution, Dimitris Heraclidis and Nikoloaos Kanavas. 
Benefactors, such as Dim. Alamanos who built  an arched bridge on the way to Potamia and commisioned the foundation of a Girls School in Agia, Bischop Hierotheus Kakalis, who willed his house to the Girls School in Metaxohori - now housing the local Cultural Centre and Panayiotis Kipouros, a man of the Greek diaspora, who financed the first water supply network of the town. 
Statesmen, such as Dallas, the most prominent personality of the 19th century, a notary and Member of Parliament  representing Agia was also an author of studies and articles about local history. A man with  broad education and an expert on local history, with particular sensitivity he had salvaged and gathered many files dating from the Ottoman period  since 1750. These documents are now property  of the  General State Archives in Metaxohori. 
 Other prominent figures were:  Dimitris Heraclidis, who spent his whole estate on the building and operation of an Old Age Home, Takis Kardaras, who donated property for the housing of the local public library, and Calypso Alexoulis, a distinguished   primary school teacher who donated her family mansion for the housing of the   Archaeological Service. 
Today, Agia still maintains strong reminders of its great   past. This is testified by the numerous ecclesiastical and architectural monuments as well as by   the number of historical documents that have survived over the centuries, the public and private archives left behind by all those who in the past played a role in the political, economic and social life of the region and are now kept in the General State Archives.
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